
 

To promote cooperative actions with communities to protect the Carson River Watershed. 
 

 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING/BUDGET HEARING 
 

DATE:  May 18, 2022 

TIME:  6:30 pm 

LOCATION: Genoa Town Hall 

2287 Main Street, Genoa, NV 89423 

The meeting will be preceded by a tour of Carson Valley Conservation District river restoration 
projects.  The Board will meet at 4pm in the parking lot of Mormon Station State Park in downtown 
Genoa, 2295 Main St, Genoa, NV 89411.  We will have dinner at 5:45 pm and our Board meeting at 
6:30pm in the Genoa Town Hall.  A quorum of the CWSD Directors may be present at the events 
preceding the board meeting, but no action will be taken. 

CWSD encourages Board Members attendance at field trips to be in-person meetings, but virtual 
attendance is available via Zoom.  If you prefer to phone in, call (669)900 9128.   
Meeting ID: 817 8923 2678; Passcode: 663370 

AGENDA 

Please Note: The Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) Board may: 1) take agenda items out of order; 2) combine two or 
more items for consideration; and/or 3) remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion related to an item at any time. All 
votes will be conducted by CWSD Board of Directors.  Reasonable efforts will be made to assist and accommodate individuals with 
limited ability to speak, write, or understand English and/or to those with disabilities who wish to join the meeting.  Please contact 
Catrina Schambra at (775)887-7450 or email: catrina@cwsd.org at least two business days in advance so that arrangements can 
be made. 
 

1. Call to Order the CWSD Board of Directors/Carson River Watershed Committee 

2. Roll Call 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. For Discussion Only:  Public Comment - Action may not be taken on any matter 
brought up under public comment until scheduled on an agenda for action at a 
later meeting. 

5. For Possible Action:  Approval of Agenda 

6. For Possible Action:  Approval of the Board Meeting Minutes of April 20, 2022 

**CONSENT AGENDA** 

Please Note:  All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and may be acted upon by the Board of Directors with one 
action and without an extensive hearing.  Any member of the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, 
discussed, and acted upon separately during this meeting. 

7. For Possible Action:  Approval of Treasurer’s Report for April 2022 

8. For Possible Action:  Approval of Payment of Bills for April 2022 

  

Carson Water Subconservancy District 
Board of Directors & Carson River Watershed Committee 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81789232678?pwd=c2k2NUowelVYL2F5YkhrT2xFOW56Zz09
mailto:catrina@cwsd.org


Carson Water Subconservancy District Board of Directors & Carson River Watershed Committee 
5/18/2022 Meeting Agenda 

2 
 

To promote cooperative actions with communities to protect the Carson River Watershed. 

9. For Possible Action:  Approval of River Wranglers 3-Year FEMA FAW Agreement 
# 2022-5 not to exceed $19,100 

10. For Possible Action:  Approval of Addendum to Cardno Contract #2021-23 to add 
$4,680 and extend end date to June 30, 2023 

**END OF CONSENT AGENDA** 

11. For Possible Action:  CWSD will conduct a Public Hearing on its FY 2022-23 
Tentative Budget 

12. For Possible Action:  Approval of NCE Agreement #2022-6 in a total amount of 
$15,000 with the possibility of future expenses in a total additional amount of 
$40,000  

13. For Discussion Only:  Presentation of “Explore the Watershed” Video 

14. For Discussion Only:  Review Strategic Planning Session Survey Results 

15. For Possible Action:  Approval of the General Fund, Acquisition/Construction 
Fund, and Floodplain Management Fund FY 2022-23 Final Budgets 

16. For Discussion Only:  Staff Reports 

    - General Manager 

    - Legal 

    - Correspondence 

17. For Discussion Only:  Directors Reports 

18. For Discussion Only:  Update on activities in Alpine County 

19. For Discussion Only:  Update on activities in Storey County 

20. For Discussion Only:  Public Comment - Action may not be taken on any matter 
brought up under public comment until scheduled on an agenda for action at a 
later meeting. 

21. For Possible Action:  Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Supporting material for this meeting may be requested from Catrina Schambra at  
775-887-7450 (catrina@cwsd.org) and is available on the CWSD website at 

https://www.cwsd.org 

  

https://www.cwsd.org/


Carson Water Subconservancy District Board of Directors & Carson River Watershed Committee 
5/18/2022 Meeting Agenda 

3 
 

To promote cooperative actions with communities to protect the Carson River Watershed. 

 
In accordance with NRS 241.020, this notice and agenda has been posted at the following 
locations: 

 Dayton Utilities Complex   Minden Inn Office Complex 
 34 Lakes Blvd     1594 Esmeralda Avenue 
 Dayton, NV     Minden, NV 
 
 Lyon County Administrative Building  Churchill County Administrative Complex 
 27 S. Main St.     155 N Taylor St. 
 Yerington, NV      Fallon, NV 
 
 Carson City Hall     Carson Water Subconservancy District Office 
 201 N. Carson St.    777 E. William St., #110A 
 Carson City, NV      Carson City, NV 
 

Alpine County Administrative Building - CWSD website: 
 99 Water St.     https://www.cwsd.org 

Markleeville, CA    State public meetings website: 
       http://notice.nv.gov 
 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

The undersigned affirms that on or before 9:00 am on May 11, 2022, he/she posted a copy of 
the Notice of Public Meeting/Budget Hearing and Agenda for the May 18, 2022, meeting of the 
Carson Water Subconservancy District Board of Directors, in accordance with NRS 241.020; said 
agenda was posted at the following location:   

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

____________________________________________________ 
SIGNATURE 
 
 

Name:  ______________________________________________ 

Title:  _______________________________________________ 

Date & Time of Posting:  ________________________________ 

https://www.cwsd.org/
http://notice.nv.gov/


AGENDA ITEM #6 

 

MINUTES OF LAST 

BOARD MEETING 



DRAFT 

1 4-20-2022 

 

 

CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND 

CARSON RIVER WATERSHED COMMITTEE MEETING 

April 20, 2021 

Draft Minutes 

Chairman Giomi called the meeting of the Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) to 
order at 6:30pm in the Bonanza Room at the Carson City Community Center at 851 East William 
Street in Carson City. Roll call of the CWSD Board was taken and a quorum was determined to be 
present. 

CWSD Directors present:   

Mark Gardner 

Stacey Giomi  

Ken Gray  

Jim Hindle 

Dave Nelson  

Lisa Schuette 

Fred Stodieck 

Mike Workman 

Directors Absent:  John Engels, Pete Olsen, and Ernie Schank. 

Roll call of the Carson River Watershed Committee included CWSD Directors and Committee 

Members present - David Griffith and January Riddle. 

CWSD Staff & Guests present: 

Kathy Canfield, Storey County Planner 

Brenda Hunt, Watershed Program Manager 

Edwin James, General Manager 

Patrick King, CWSD Attorney 

Debbie Neddenriep, Water Resources Specialist II 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairman Giomi. 

Item #4 – Discussion Only:  Public Comment – None 

Item #5 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Agenda 

Chairman Giomi asked for any objections to the Agenda as presented.  

There being none, the Agenda approved by the Board. 

Item #6 – For Possible Action:  Approval of the Board Meeting Minutes of March 16, 2022 

Committee Member Griffith made a motion to approve the Board Meeting 

Minutes of March 16, 2022, as presented.  The motion was seconded by 

Director Workman and unanimously approved by the Board. 

**CONSENT AGENDA** 

Item #7 - For Possible Action:  Approval of Treasurer’s Report for March 2022 



DRAFT 

2 4-20-2022 

 

 

Item #8 - For Possible Action:  Approval of Payment of Bills for March 2022 

Item #9 - For Possible Action:  Approval of Civil Rights provisions in Federal 

Funding language being added to CWSD contract language (§ 200.321) 

Item #10 - For Discussion Only:  CRC Watershed Forum March 29-30, 2022 

Committee Member Griffith made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

as presented.  The motion was seconded by Director Workman and 

unanimously approved by the Board. 

**END OF CONSENT AGENDA** 

Item #11 - For Possible Action:  Strategic Planning Session 

Mr. James opened the strategic planning meeting by having everyone introduce 
themselves.  Mr. James then showed the CWSD video.  Ms. Hunt then reviewed the 
Carson River Coalition (CRC) process and programs, Ms. Neddenriep reviewed the flood 
programs, and Mr. James discussed the regional water system study.  After those 
presentations the Board Members discussed what projects and programs CWSD should 
pursue.  After discussing various topics, the Board directed staff to prepare a survey 
based on the meeting notes and send it out to the Board Members.  The results of the 
survey would be presented at the next Board Meeting.     

No action taken but direction was given. 

Item #12 – For Discussion Only:  Staff Reports – None 

Legal – None 

Correspondence – None 

Item #13 – For Discussion Only:  Directors Reports – None 

Item #14 – For Discussion Only:  Update on activities in Alpine County – None 

Item #15– For Discussion Only:  Update on activities in Storey County – None 

Item #16 – For Discussion Only:  Public Comment – None 

There being no further business to come before the Board, Chairman Giomi adjourned the 

meeting at 7:10 pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Ed James 

General Manager 



AGENDA ITEM #7 

 

TREASURER’S REPORT 































AGENDA ITEM #8 

 

PAYMENT OF BILLS 











AGENDA ITEM #9 



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: May 18, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #9 – For Possible Action:  Approval of River Wranglers  

3-Year FEMA FAW Agreement # 2022-5 not to exceed $19,100 

 

  

DISCUSSION:  Last month, CWSD sent out a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to assist 
with CWSD’s flood awareness program.  CWSD received one proposal from River 
Wranglers.  Funding for this program is coming from FEMA.  This program will go from 
May 18, 2022, to June 30, 2025.  Attached is a draft of our standard agreement with River 
Wranglers.   

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the agreement as submitted.  
 
 



 DRAFT  CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2022-5 

1 of 8 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2022-5  River Wranglers-FAW -FEMA MAS 11 

 

Agreement 
 

Addressing Funding from Carson Water Subconservancy  
to River Wranglers 

to assist with Carson River Watershed Flood Awareness Outreach Program 
  
 This Agreement is entered into by and between RIVER WRANGLERS, a non-profit association 
(hereinafter "RW") and the CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT, a political subdivision of 
the State of Nevada (hereinafter "CWSD").   

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, RW is a 501(C)(3) non-profit organization; and 

 WHEREAS, RW has organized a program for Flood Awareness Outreach to Schools Located in 
the Carson River Watershed, which is further described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference; and 

 WHEREAS, CWSD is a water subconservancy district created and organized under the 
provisions of Chapter 541 of NRS; and 

 WHEREAS, this Contract is entered into under the provisions of NRS 277.180 and must be 
ratified by appropriate official action of the governing body of each party as a condition precedent to its 
entry into force; and 

 WHEREAS, CWSD and RW each possess common objectives and responsibilities regarding the 
Carson River; and  

 WHEREAS, RW has requested funding to perform work from May 18, 2022, through  
June 30, 2025 on Carson River Watershed Flood Awareness Projects; and 

 WHEREAS, CWSD has agreed to set aside $19,100 and to grant RW said amount to assist with 
the projects set forth in Exhibit "A;" and 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants herein 
contained, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties as follows:  

1. CONTRACT TERM: 

CWSD hereby grants to RW $19,100 to assist with Carson River Watershed Flood Awareness Outreach 
Program: 

a As identified and described in Exhibit "A"; and 

b RW will submit requests for funding periodically.  The request for funding shall be 
accompanied by a description of what the funds will be used for and shall reference this 
Contract.  

c CWSD commits to pay the approved amount of the request to RW within four (4) weeks 
of said request. 

d RW will submit Project Summary Reports (see Exhibit “B”), including before and after 
project pictures, project goals, etc., prior to final invoice payment or ten percent of grant 
funding will be withheld until reports are submitted.  

e CWSD shall have no responsibility for costs exceeding $19,1000.   



 DRAFT  CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2022-5 

2 of 8 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2022-5  River Wranglers-FAW -FEMA MAS 11 

f This Contract shall terminate June 30, 2025, at which time RW shall have one (1) month 
thereafter to submit its final invoice for payment related to work performed under this 
Contract. 

g Additional funds may be added and time extensions granted based on mutual agreement 
by the parties. 

h If circumstances arise that require a time extension to complete the project, the CWSD 
Board grants the General Manager authority to do so in a written notice to RW. 

i Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, any obligation of CWSD 
hereunder is conditioned upon CWSD's funding resources.  If for whatever reason the 
CWSD's funding resources are reduced or eliminated, CWSD reserves the right to 
terminate this Agreement immediately in writing.  CWSD will reimburse RW for all costs 
that occurred under this Agreement up to the date the Agreement is terminated. 

2. LIMITED LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION: 

a. Each party shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend (not excluding the others right to 
participate) the other party from and against all liability, claims, actions, damages, losses, 
and expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, arising 
out of any alleged negligent or willful acts or omissions of the indemnifying party, its 
officers, employees, and agents.  Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, 
abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would 
otherwise exist as to any party or person described in this paragraph. 

b. The indemnification obligation under this paragraph is conditioned upon the receipt of 
written notice of claim by the indemnified party to the indemnifying party within thirty (30) 
days. The hold harmless and indemnification provision shall not apply to attorneys’ fees 
and costs for the indemnified party’s chosen right to participate with legal counsel. 

c. The parties acknowledge or agree that the contract was written and agreed by both 
parties. 

d. Prior to the institution of any litigation the parties agree to mediate. 

e. Prior to commencing the activities that constitute the Project, RW shall deliver to CWSD a 
certificate issued by its insurance carrier naming CWSD as an additional insured and 
stating that the policy will not be modified or cancelled without 30 days’ notice to CWSD. 

3. RW shall provide CWSD insurance as follows:   

a. General Liability Insurance:  Prior to commencement and for the duration of activities that 
constitute the Project that is the subject of this Contract, RW shall maintain commercial 
general liability (CGL) as follows:  

i. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - General Aggregate. 

ii. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - Products & Completed Operations 
Aggregate. 

iii. One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) - Each Occurrence. 

iv. CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a 
substitute form providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising 
from premises, operations, products-completed operations, personal and 
advertising injury, and liability assumed under an insured contract [(including the 
tort liability of another assumed in a business contract)]. 

v. CWSD, its officers, employees and immune contractors shall be included as an 
insured under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 or 



 DRAFT  CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2022-5 

3 of 8 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2022-5  River Wranglers-FAW -FEMA MAS 11 

CG 20 26, or a substitute providing equivalent coverage, including coverage 
under the commercial umbrella, if any. 

vi. This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other 
insurance or self-insurance programs afforded to CWSD There shall be no 
endorsement or modification of the CGL to make it excess over other available 
insurance; alternatively, if the CGL states that it is excess or pro rata, the policy 
shall be endorsed to be primary with respect to the additional insured. 

vii. There shall be no endorsement or modification of the CGL limiting the scope of 
coverage for liability assumed under a contract. 

viii. RW waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and 
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by 
the commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance 
maintained pursuant to this Contract. Insurer shall endorse CGL policy as 
required to waive subrogation against CWSD with respect to any loss paid under 
the policy.  

b. Business Automobile Liability Insurance:   

i. RW shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary, commercial umbrella 
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each accident for 
bodily injury and property damage. 

ii. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of owned, hired, and non-
owned autos (as applicable).  Coverage as required above shall be written 
on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form providing 
equivalent liability coverage. 

iii. RW waives all rights against CWSD and its agents, officers, directors, and 
employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are 
covered by the automobile liability or other liability insurance obtained by RW 
pursuant this Contract.  

c. Workers Compensation Insurance  

iv. RW will secure and maintain Workers Compensation during the period of the 
contract.  

4. NOTICE:  For invoicing and notice purposes, the address of each party is as follows: 

   RW     CWSD 
   Attn.: Rebecca Feldermann  Attn.: Edwin James 
 Executive Director   General Manager 
   P.O. Box 1612   777 E. William St., #110 
   Dayton, NV  89403   Carson City, NV 89701 
   (775) 856-9268   (775) 887-7450 
 
5. MISCELLANEOUS: 

a. This Contract shall be by and between the parties hereto and shall not be assignable or 
transferable. 

b. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the State 
of Nevada. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes will be 
resolved by, the courts of the First Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in 
Carson City. If any part of this Contract is declared to be unlawful, any remaining 



 DRAFT  CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2022-5 

4 of 8 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2022-5  River Wranglers-FAW -FEMA MAS 11 

obligations shall be deemed terminated. 

c. This Contract may only be amended by consent of both parties. Any amendments must 
be written and executed with the same formality as this Contract. 

d. This Contract constitutes the entire understanding between the parties and there are 
no representations, conditions, warranties, or collateral agreements (expressed or 
implied), statutory or otherwise, with respect to the subject of this Contract. 

e. The Parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to the extent set 
forth in this contract. Each Party is a public agency separate and distinct from the other 
Party. Nothing contained in this contract may be deemed or construed to create a 
partnership or joint venture, to create relationships of an employer-employee or 
principal- agent, to convey ownership of any asset, or to otherwise create any liability 
for one Party whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of 
the other Party. 

f. The Parties agree to keep and maintain, under general accepted accounting principles, 
full, true, and complete records, agreements, books, and documents pertaining to this 
contract, and at the request of the other Party agree to present, at any reasonable time, 
such records, agreements, books, and documents for inspection, examination, review, 
audit, and copying at any office where such records, agreements, books, and 
documents are maintained. 

g. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents, including this contract, may be 
open to public inspection and copying. The Parties will have the duty to disclose unless 
particular information or documents are made confidential by law or a common law 
balancing of interest. To the extent that information or documents are made 
confidential, the Parties shall keep such information or documents confidential. 

h. This contract does not contemplate any transfer of property or ownership interest 
between the Parties and the Parties will each maintain ownership of their own facilities. 

i. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this contract, the rights and remedies of the 
Parties shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies 
provided by law or equity. 

j. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of this contract 
or its material or nonmaterial terms by either Party shall not operate as a waiver by 
such Party of any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach. 

k. Neither Party shall be deemed to be in violation of this contract if it is prevented from 
performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public 
transportation, pandemic, civil or military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, 
explosions, or acts of God, including, without limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or 
storms. In such an event the intervening cause must not be through the fault of the 
Party asserting such an excuse, and the excused Party is obligated to promptly 
perform in accordance with the terms of the contract after the intervening cause 
ceases. 

l. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the 
State of Nevada. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes 
will be resolved by, the courts of the First Judicial District Court of the State of 
Nevada in Carson City. If any part of this contact is declared to be unlawful, any 
remaining obligations shall be deemed terminated.  

m. Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable and if for any reason 
any provision or provisions herein are determined to be invalid, unenforceable, or 



 DRAFT  CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2022-5 

5 of 8 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2022-5  River Wranglers-FAW -FEMA MAS 11 

illegal under any existing or future law, such invalidity, unenforceability, or illegality 
shall not impair the operation of or affect those portions of this Agreement that are 
valid, enforceable, and legal. 

 

6. PROPER AUTHORITY: 

a. This Contract becomes effective when ratified by appropriate official action of the 
governing body of each party. 

b. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract on 
behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the 
parties are authorized by law to engage in cooperative action set forth herein. 

c. This Contract shall be entered into with duplicate originals, realizing that each entity, by 
necessity, must approve and execute the subject document at different dates, times, and 
places. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract on the day and year first 
written above.   

 

DATED: ________________________  DATED: ________________________ 

 

      CARSON WATER 

RIVER WRANGLERS    SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

Rachel Leach, Co-Chair    Stacey Giomi, Chairman 

 

ATTEST:     ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

Ed DeCarlo, Co-Chair    Catrina Schambra, Secretary to the Board  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 DRAFT  CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2022-5 

6 of 8 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2022-5  River Wranglers-FAW -FEMA MAS 11 

Exhibit A 

 

 

 

Thank you for allowing River Wranglers to engage our community and students in 

flood awareness.  

 

PROJECT GOALS 

GOAL: Develop interactive, high-quality virtual content via google classroom that is 

standards-aligned for 3rd grade and middle school students. We will create engaging 

activities that students can do alone at home, or in a classroom as a group – dependent 

on how the teacher wants to use it. This will include video content of the models as well 

as graded activities related to flood awareness. The goal with this content is to make it 

such that it can be used even if we return to fully in-person events in the future.  

 

GOAL: Recruit at least one elementary and one middle school in each of four counties 

(Douglas, Lyon, Churchill, Carson), and an elementary school in Alpine and Storey 

counties. This will include both virtual and live programming, depending on what is 

allowed. This is flexible and can include both pieces. We envision creating virtual 

content that can be used even if/when we return to fully in-person programming.  

 

GOAL: Plan, advertise, and staff one small, family-style event in the four major 

counties related to flood awareness. These events will be outdoors, near the river, and 

will include education and activities, dependent upon county restrictions.  

 

GOAL: 25% return rate on coloring books for elementary students and contact sheet 

for middle school students. We will supply coloring books for elementary students and 

will create a contact sheet/emergency plan form for middle school students. Each will  

P.O. Box 1612, Dayton, NV 89403 

www.riverwranglers.org 

775.386.2743 

about:blank


 DRAFT  CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2022-5 

7 of 8 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2022-5  River Wranglers-FAW -FEMA MAS 11 

 

 

be delivered prior to the start of programming, and students who return their filled-out 

sheets will receive a reward. 

 

GOAL: 75% return on Survey Monkey. We will create pre- and post- tests to evaluate 

the retention of information. 

 

 

TASKS 

Scripting/filming for online curriculum and flood “tour” of 
the watershed 

Recruit teachers, deliver flood booklets, roll out curriculum 

Small flood awareness events in at least 4 of the 6 counties 

Pre-and Post- tests for participating classrooms, live events 
if allowed, deliver rewards to students who bring back info 
sheet 
 

Wrap-up reports, analyze data 

 
 

EXPENSES 

Develop virtual, standards-aligned content 

Recruit teachers 

Mileage 

Scripting/Filming 

Small flood awareness events (planning, advertising, 
executing) 

Deliver flood booklets/school events 

Survey 

Rewards for students/Event take-away 

 

TOTAL: $19,100 

 



 DRAFT  CWSD Non-Profit Agreement #2022-5 

8 of 8 
 
Non-Profit Agreement #2022-5  River Wranglers-FAW -FEMA MAS 11 

Exhibit B 

 

Project Summary Form  

Project name  

Type of Project   

Map ID# Per Stewardship Plan Maps if previously mapped 

Date Started  

Date Completed    

Location Details/Address  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

Add Project # Latitude  Longitude  

HUC  

Contact Person   

Primary Objective (What will the project achieve? Was the objective achieved?) 

Area restored/stabilized 
Add linear feet of project/acreage/an applicable measurable unit/material used (rock, 
plants, etc.) 

Estimated Load Reduction Only if applicable 

Total Project Cost $ 

Project Partners List all partners 

 

 

 

Project Photos:  

 

Before construction:     After construction: 

 
Title: Example Photos (replace with specific project)  

Tracking Updates and Milestones  

Date Activity  

Add data and expand table/insert 
rows as required 

Add data and expand table/insert rows as required 

  



AGENDA ITEM #10



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: May 18, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item #10– For Possible Action:  Approval of Addendum to Cardno 
Contract #2021-23 to add $4,680 and extend end date to June 30, 2023 

 

DISCUSSION:  In preparing the new flood maps for Clear Creek, Cardno Engineering firm 
found that the flood waters go further north than anticipated (see attached memo).  To 
properly model and remap the floodplain the drainage structures crossing I-580 needs to 
be included into the hydraulic model.  The total increase is $14,040.  CWSD and Carson 
City staffs met with representative from Cardno to discuss the increase in costs.  It was 
agreed that the increase costs would be split three ways.  CWSD and Carson City would 
pay $4,680 each, and Cardno would reduce their costs by $4,680.  The cost from CWSD 
will be covered by the FEMA grant.  Due to the additional work the project schedule will 
need to be moved out another five months.  Attached is the addendum to the Cardno 
contract.   

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Addendum to Cardno Contract #2021-23 to 
add $4,680 and extend end date to June 30, 2023  
 
 



 

 
 

 

 
 
USA 

      
 
 
www.cardno.com 
www.stantec.com 
 

March 22, 2022 

 

 

RE: Scope, schedule and budget adjustment to Remap and Restudy Clear 
Creek Project 

 

 

We have been making progress on the Remap and Restudy Clear Creek Project and 
are on schedule. The schedule below (Figure 1a) shows our completed efforts in grey. 
We recently completed the preliminary draft HEC-RAS model and floodway analysis 
and met with Robb Fellows to review the results. During the meeting Robb and Andrea 
discussed model results showing an increase in floodplain inundation to the north of the 
effective mapping that extends to I-580 (Figure 2). These were unexpected (although 
reasonable) model results. In our original scope of work, we assumed that we would 
only need to collect structure data where Clear Creek crosses roadways, however, in 
order to properly model and map the restudied floodplain extents, drainage structures 
crossing I-580 need to be included in the hydraulic model. We have already submitted 
a public records request to NDOT for these structures and NDOT confirmed that we 
can expect receipt of our requested records (or a response indicating they do not have 
the records) by April 8, 2022. 

In addition to the effort to compile the necessary structure information, there is 
additional effort associated with the Survey task MIP deliverables as well as the effort 
required to input the structure data into the HEC-RAS model and extend the modeling 
extents and conduct additional technical meetings with Robb Fellows.  

The estimated additional budget is $14,040, with an estimated completion date of 
March 21, 2023. We have also included some additional budget in the topography task 
for the effort that we have already undertaken to extend the topography outside of the 
2018 LiDAR footprint, as was required for the hydraulic modeling.  

We have included our original Business/Technical Plan with Amendment 1 changes in 
tracked changes with the comment “Amendment 1” for your reference. Other tracked 
changes in the document are changes that were made at the initiation of our contract. 

 

Project Management - $1,620 

 

Additional effort consists of effort associated with coordination of additional subtasks. 

 

Survey Data Capture - $2,590 

 

Additional effort consists of the following: 

• Requesting and acquiring NDOT public record plans for additional structures.  

o Additional structures that require survey information are one storm 
drain crossing at the intersection of Highway 395 and I-580 and two 
culvert crossings under I-580 near Snyder Avenue.  

• Updating MIP deliverables 



March 22, 2022 

\\Cwsd-nas\cwsd\Board Meetings\2022 Board Meetings\2022-5\5-18-22 #10A Cardno Memo.docx www.cardno.com 

2 

 

Assumptions 

• No field survey will be required.  

• NDOT will provide requested information by April 8, 2022  

 

Topographic Data Capture - $1,430 

 

Additional effort consists of acquiring topography south of the USGS 2017 LiDAR to include the Carson River and 
floodplain, which is the downstream boundary condition for the Clear Creek hydraulic model, and updating MIP 
deliverables.   

 

Develop Hydrologic Data - $0 

 

No additional effort is anticipated. 

 

Develop Hydraulic Data $7,000 

 

Additional effort consists of adding the additional structures to the hydraulic model and expanding the model extents. 

 

Perform Floodplain Mapping - $1,400 

 

Additional effort consists of additional coordination and technical review meetings with Carson City to properly map the 
floodplain in the location of I-580. 

 



March 22, 2022 

\\Cwsd-nas\cwsd\Board Meetings\2022 Board Meetings\2022-5\5-18-22 #10A Cardno Memo.docx www.cardno.com 

3 

 

Figure 1a. Contracted schedule with completed tasks in grey. 

 



March 22, 2022 

\\Cwsd-nas\cwsd\Board Meetings\2022 Board Meetings\2022-5\5-18-22 #10A Cardno Memo.docx www.cardno.com 

4 

 

Figure 1b. Amended schedule with modifications highlighted in yellow. 

 



March 22, 2022 

\\Cwsd-nas\cwsd\Board Meetings\2022 Board Meetings\2022-5\5-18-22 #10A Cardno Memo.docx www.cardno.com 

5 

 

 

Figure 2. Preliminary draft floodplain mapping with location of additional structures required (in red). 

 

 



 CWSD Contractor Agreement #2021-23 

  DRAFT 
 

ADDENDUM TO CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT #2021-23 CARDNO 

 
ADDENDUM TO CONTRACT #2021-23 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT AND  

CARDNO FOR CLEAR CREEK RESTUDY & REMAP PROJECT 

 

 WHEREAS, on March 17, 2021 the CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

(hereinafter referred to "CWSD") and CARDNO entered into a Contractor Agreement (hereinafter 

"Contractor Agreement #2021-23") addressing funding from CWSD to CARDNO for services in 

connection with conduct Clear Creek Restudy and Remap Project (“Project”); and 

 WHEREAS, CWSD has revised the budget for this project to provide CARDNO with additional 

funding for Clear Creek Restudy and Remap Project; and 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that additional funds in the amount not to exceed $4,680 

be added to Contractor Agreement #2021-23 with CARDNO; and 

WHEREAS, additional time is needed to complete the project; 

 NOW, THEREFORE IT IS AGREED: 

1. An additional amount not to exceed $4,680 will be provided to Contractor Agreement 

#2021-23 with CARDNO.  

2. Due to delays to project CARDNO Contract #2021-23 shall be extended and shall 

terminate June 30, 2023. 

3. All other terms of Contractor Agreement #2021-23 shall remain in full force and effect.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Addendum on the day and year written 

below.   

 

DATE: ___________________    DATE: ________________________ 

CARDNO       CARSON WATER 
        SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 
 
_________________________    ______________________________ 
Coleen Shade, Senior Environmental Planner  Stacey Giomi, Chairman  
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM #11



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: EDWIN D. JAMES  
 
DATE: May 18, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item #11 – For Possible Action:  Carson Water Subconservancy 

District will conduct a Public Hearing on its FY 2022-23 Tentative Budget 

 
 
DISCUSSION:  Under NRS 354.596 all public entities are required to hold a public hearing 
on the tentative budget.  The notice of the public hearing was placed in the Nevada Appeal 
on May 7, 2022.  The Tentative Budget was approved by CWSD at the March 16, 2022, 
Board meeting and was part of the March Board package posted on the CWSD website. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct the public hearing on the CWSD 2022-23 
Tentative Budget. 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM #12



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: May 18, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item #12 – For Possible Action:  Approval of NCE Agreement  
#2022-6 in a total amount of $15,000 with the possibility of future expenses 
in a total additional amount of $40,000  

 

  

DISCUSSION:  Included in our CRC Watershed Coordination Program Grant is a 
project to develop a web access system that can view and track Carson River 

Adaptive Stewardship Plan (CRASP). CWSD has chosen NCE an Engineering and 
Environmental Services firm out of Reno, NV. This project has three phases and only 
Phase I is currently funded for $15,000, a reimbursable expense through our NDEP 

319(h) grant.  The intent of Phase 1: is to use ArcGIS Online (a web Map Viewer 
platform) to host CRASP project data to allow our partners and public to view 

CRASP projects, their locations, and status throughout the watershed.  Subsequent 
phases (II & III) have not yet been funded and have an estimated budget of 
~$40,000.  These future phases will create a portal where partners can upload 

information directly to the GIS web viewer and develop a database query tool where 
CWSD and our partners can track measurable outcomes. The selected firm must be 

able to implement and support all future phases of this project. CWSD will be 
seeking to complete subsequent phases II & III subject to future funding availability 
through NDEP or other reimbursable sources.  

 

Additional projected expenses for CWSD for Phases II & III will include either ArcGIS 
Online hosting (with NCE) or subscription costs for CWSD.  Whether we choose to 

host with NCE or obtain ESRI ArcGIS Online subscription, CWSD will pursue a 
separate contract to be funded through our Outside Professional Services account. 
Page six of the attached Exhibit A – Scope of Work show these costs estimates to be 

$3200 annually, but this may change depending on the cost ESRI and backup 
subscriptions when additional funding for Phases II & III is obtained.  

 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Contract #2022-6 with NCE for Web Access 
System with the initial amount not to exceed $15,000.  Phases II & III will occur only after 
future funding sources have been secured.  

 



 CWSD Contractor Agreement #2022-6 

  DRAFT 
 

Page 1 of 13 

Contractor Agreement #2022-6   NCE – GIS Web Access System for CRASP  

Agreement 
 

Carson Water Subconservancy District (hereinafter “CWSD”) and NCE Engineering, Environmental Services 
(hereinafter “NCE”) hereby enter into an agreement whereby NCE will develop GIS Assets and a Web 
Viewer/Partner Portal to view, update, and track the Carson River Adaptive Stewardship Plan (CRASP) projects.  

1) ASSIGNMENT 

 NCE’s assignment shall relate to the following product(s) or service(s): 

Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) is developing a GIS web access system that can view, 
update, track, and report on Carson River Adaptive Stewardship Plan (CRASP) projects.  Presently only 
the initial phase (phase I) has been funded with a budget of $15,000. Subsequent phases (II & III) have 
not yet been funded and have an estimated budget of $40,000. See Exhibit A:  Scope of Work which 
outlines the Project Purpose and Tasks associated with this agreement. 

2) INDEMNITIES 

(a) To the fullest extent permitted by law NCE shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend, not excluding 
the CWSD's right to participate, the CWSD from and against all liability, claims, actions, damages, 
losses, and expenses, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, and costs, arising out 
of any alleged negligent or willful acts or omissions of NCE, its officers, employees, and agents. 

(b) CWSD will indemnify and hold NCE harmless with respect to any claims or actions instituted by third 
parties which result from the use by NCE of material furnished by CWSD or where material created by 
NCE is substantially changed by CWSD.  

(c) In the event of any proceeding against CWSD by any regulatory agency or in the event of any court 
action or self-regulatory action challenging any product prepared by NCE, NCE shall assist in the 
preparation of the defense of such action or proceeding and cooperate with CWSD and CWSD’s 
attorneys. CWSD will reimburse NCE any out-of-pocket costs NCE may incur in connection with any 
such action or proceeding. 

(d) Neither party waives any right or defense to indemnification that may exist in law or equity. 

3) INSURANCE 

Unless otherwise required in this Agreement, the CWSD and NCE shall, during the performance of the 
services as provided herein, maintain insurance of the types and amounts specified, and with insurers 
satisfactory to the other party as follows:  

a) Comprehensive General Liability including $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property 
damage; $1,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate; $2,000,000 General Aggregate 
over all interests. 

b) Comprehensive Automobile Liability including coverage for owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles: 
$1,000,000 Bodily Injury, $1,000,000 Property Damage. 

c) NCE shall name CWSD as an additional insured and deliver a certificate to CWSD. 

d) If NCE hires a contractor to perform any portion of this project, the contractor shall add CWSD as an 
additional insured. The contractor must carry the Liability Insurance requirements described in items 
a-c above. 

4) TERM OF AGREEMENT 

a) The term of this Agreement will commence on the date of the last signature executed hereon and will 



 CWSD Contractor Agreement #2022-6 

  DRAFT 
 

Page 2 of 13 

Contractor Agreement #2022-6   NCE – GIS Web Access System for CRASP  

continue in full force and effect until 12/31/24, unless extended by written agreement of the parties. 

b) NCE will submit quarterly invoices with a detailed written description of activities preformed per task.  

c) In the event of termination of this Agreement, the rights, duties, and responsibilities of NCE shall 
continue in full force during the period of notice. 

d) If circumstances arise that require a time extension to complete the project, the CWSD Board grants 
the General Manager authority to do so in a written notice to NCE. 

5) PERFORMANCE 

Should NCE fail to perform any of the services provided for in Exhibit “A,” CWSD shall notify NCE of such 
non-performance and allow thirty (30) days for NCE to remedy the performance. If the performance has 
not been satisfied within thirty days, CWSD may withhold payment only for the services not performed 
in accordance with this Agreement. 

6) SUPPLEMENTS TO AGREEMENT 

The following Exhibits are an integral part of this Agreement:  

(a) Exhibit A:  NCE Scope of Work 

7) INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

NCE acknowledges that it is furnishing the services contemplated by this Agreement hereto as an 
independent contractor, and not as an employee, or agent of CWSD or any of its affiliates.  

8) OWNERSHIP 

Any reports, histories, studies, tests, manuals, instructions, photographs, negatives, blue prints, plans, 
maps, data, system designs, computer code (which are intended to be considered under this Agreement), 
or any other documents or drawings, prepared, or in the course of preparation, by NCE (or its 
subcontractors) in performance of its obligations under this Agreement shall be the exclusive property 
of CWSD and all such materials shall be delivered into CWSD’s possession by NCE upon completion, 
termination, or cancellation of this Agreement. NCE shall not use, willingly allow, or cause to have such 
materials used for any purpose other than performance of NCE’s obligations under this Agreement 
without the prior written consent of CWSD.  

9) AGREEMENT TERMINATION 

(a) Termination Without Cause. Any discretionary or vested right of renewal notwithstanding, this 
Agreement may be terminated upon written notice by mutual consent of both parties and 
unilaterally by either party without cause.  

(b) Cause Termination for Default or Breach. A default or breach may be declared with or without 
termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon written notice of default or 
breach to the other party as follows:  

(1) If NCE fails to provide or satisfactorily perform any of the conditions, work, deliverables, goods, 
or services called for by this Agreement within the time requirements specified in this 
Agreement or within any granted extension of those time requirements; or  

(2) If any State, county, city, or federal license, authorization, waiver, permit, qualification, or 
certification required by statute, ordinance, law, or regulation to be held by NCE to provide the 
goods or services required by this Agreement is for any reason denied, revoked, debarred, 
excluded, terminated, suspended, lapsed, or not renewed; or  



 CWSD Contractor Agreement #2022-6 

  DRAFT 
 

Page 3 of 13 

Contractor Agreement #2022-6   NCE – GIS Web Access System for CRASP  

(3) If NCE becomes insolvent, subject to receivership, or becomes voluntarily or involuntarily 
subject to the jurisdiction of the bankruptcy court; or  

(4) If CWSD materially breaches any material duty under this Agreement and any such breach 
impairs NCE's ability to perform; or  

(c) Time to Correct. Termination upon declared default or breach may be exercised only after service of 
formal written notice and the subsequent failure of the defaulting party within thirty (30) calendar 
days of receipt of that notice to provide evidence, satisfactory to the aggrieved party, showing that 
the declared default or breach has been corrected.  

(d) Winding Up Affairs Upon Termination. In the event of termination of this Agreement for any reason, 
the parties agree that the provisions of this Section survive termination:  

(1) The parties shall account for and properly present to each other all claims for fees and expenses 
and pay those which are undisputed and otherwise not subject to set off under this Agreement. 
Neither party may withhold performance of winding up provisions solely based on nonpayment 
of fees or expenses accrued up to the time of termination;  

(2) NCE shall satisfactorily complete work in progress at the agreed rate (or a pro rata basis if 
necessary) if so requested by the CWSD;  

(3) NCE shall execute any documents and take any actions necessary to effectuate an assignment of 
this Agreement if so requested by the CWSD; and 

(4) NCE shall preserve, protect, and promptly deliver into CWSD possession all information in 
accordance with Section 8, Ownership. 

10) RIGHTS UPON TERMINATION  

(a) Upon termination of this Agreement, NCE shall transfer, assign, and make available to CWSD or 
CWSD’s representative, all property and materials in their possession or control belonging to and paid 
for by CWSD, subject, however, to any rights of third parties of which NCE has informed CWSD. 

11) BREACH REMEDIES.  

Failure of either party to perform any obligation of this Agreement shall be deemed a breach. Except as 
otherwise provided for by law or this Agreement, the rights and remedies of the parties shall not be 
exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or equity, including but 
not limited to actual damages. The Parties agree that, in the event one Party is awarded attorney’s fees 
against the other for any reason, the rate applied to recoverable attorney’s fees shall not exceed the rate 
of $125 per hour. The Parties further agree that the liability of CWSD shall be limited as follows: 

Phase I: $15,000 (currently funded), Phase II and III: $40,000 (subject to funding availability)as 
appropriated by CWSD for purposes of this contract. 

The parties acknowledge or agree that the contract was written and agreed by both parties. 

Prior to the initiation of any litigation the parties agree to mediate. 

12) NOTICES 

Any notice pursuant to this Agreement will be addressed to the following parties:  

Attn.: Edwin James     Attn.: Kevin Senn  
Carson Watershed Subconservancy District  NCE  
777 E William Street, Suite 110 A   1885 S. Arlington Ave., Suite 111  
Carson City, NV 89701     Reno, NV 89509 



 CWSD Contractor Agreement #2022-6 

  DRAFT 
 

Page 4 of 13 

Contractor Agreement #2022-6   NCE – GIS Web Access System for CRASP  

 
13) MISCELLANEOUS 

(a) This Contract shall be by and between the parties hereto and shall not be assignable or transferable. 

(b) Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be decided according to the laws of the State of Nevada. 
The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of, and agree that disputes will be resolved by, the courts of 
the First Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in Carson City. If any part of this Contract is 
declared to be unlawful, any remaining obligations shall be deemed terminated. 

(c) This Contract may only be amended by consent of both parties. Any amendments must be written 
and executed with the same formality as this Contract. 

(d) This Contract constitutes the entire understanding between the parties and there are no 
representations, conditions, warranties, or collateral agreements (expressed or implied), statutory 
or otherwise, with respect to the subject of this Contract. 

(e) The Parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to the extent set forth in this 
contract. Each Party is a public agency separate and distinct from the other Party. Nothing contained 
in this contract may be deemed or construed to create a partnership or joint venture, to create 
relationships of an employer-employee or principal- agent, to convey ownership of any asset, or to 
otherwise create any liability for one Party whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, 
and obligations of the other Party. 

(f) The Parties agree to keep and maintain, under general accepted accounting principles, full, true and 
complete records, agreements, books, and documents pertaining to this contract, and at the request 
of the other Party agree to present, at any reasonable time, such records, agreements, books, and 
documents for inspection, examination, review, audit, and copying at any office where such records, 
agreements, books, and documents are maintained. 

(g) Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents received from NCE may be open to public 
inspection and copying. CWSD has a legal obligation to disclose such information unless a particular 
record is made confidential by law. NCE may label specific parts of an individual document as a 
"trade secret" or "confidential" in accordance with NRS 333.333, provided that NCE thereby agrees 
to indemnify and defend CWSD for honoring such a designation. The failure to so label any 
document that is released by CWSD shall constitute a complete waiver of any and all claims for 
damages caused by any release of the records. 
 

(h) Except as otherwise provided for by law or this contract, the rights and remedies of the Parties shall 
not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or equity. 

(i) Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of this contract or its 
material or nonmaterial terms by either Party shall not operate as a waiver by such Party of any of 
its rights or remedies as to any other breach. 

(j) Neither Party shall be deemed to be in violation of this contract if it is prevented from performing 
any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public transportation, civil or military 
authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of God, including, without 
limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such an event the intervening cause must not be 
through the fault of the Party asserting such an excuse, The affected party will notify the other party 
in writing within ten (10) days after the beginning of any such cause that would affect its 
performance. Notwithstanding, if a party's performance is delayed for a period exceeding thirty (30) 
days from the date the other party receives notice under this paragraph, the non-affected party will 



 CWSD Contractor Agreement #2022-6 

  DRAFT 
 

Page 5 of 13 

Contractor Agreement #2022-6   NCE – GIS Web Access System for CRASP  

have the right, without any liability to the other party, to terminate this agreement. 

(k) Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable and if for any reason any provision 
or provisions herein are determined to be invalid, unenforceable, or illegal under any existing or 
future law, such invalidity, unenforceability, or illegality shall not impair the operation of or affect 
those portions of this Agreement that are valid, enforceable, and legal. 

(l) Headings in this Agreement are for convenience only, and are not intended to be used in 
interpreting or construing the terms, covenants, and conditions of this Agreement. 

14) PROPER AUTHORITY 

(a) The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract on behalf of each 
party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the parties are authorized by 
law to engage in cooperative action set forth herein. 

(b) This Contract shall be entered into with duplicate originals, realizing that each entity, by necessity, 
must approve and execute the subject document at different dates, times, and places. 

 
 
Accepted and Agreed on behalf of:   Accepted and Agreed on behalf of: 
Carson Water Subconservancy District   NCE Agency 

 

 

 

 

______________________________________  ______________________________________ 
Signature     Date  Signature          Date 
Edwin D. James  Kevin Senn                   
General Manager Principal 

 



 CWSD Contractor Agreement #2022-6 

  DRAFT 
 

Page 6 of 13 

Contractor Agreement #2022-6   NCE – GIS Web Access System for CRASP  

Exhibit A 
NCE Scope of Work 

Project Understanding 

The Carson Watershed Subconservancy District (CWSD) seeks the development of a web access system capable 
of viewing, editing, and tracking Carson River Adaptive Stewardship Plan (CRASP) projects. The purpose of the 
CRASP, a collaborative effort involving many local partnerships sharing the common goal of improving the Carson 
River Watershed, is to: 

• provide an overview of the watershed and its challenges  

• identify issues related to nonpoint source pollution 

• discuss strategies to address identified issues 

• provide a project tracking mechanism 

• identify future project opportunities 

• address specific criteria within Section 319 of the Clean Water Act 

Demonstration of meeting Section 319 criteria is critical to funding for future projects. The purpose of this project 
is to improve the reporting and tracking aspect of the CRASP.  

To date, the onus of partnership project tracking has been on the CWSD in the form of piecemeal data entry, 
project form submission using MS Word, and substantial communication between CRASP partners. Since the 
development of the CRASP in 2007, this piecemeal process has been adequate but inefficient. NCE has been 
retained to centralize and improve the tracking and reporting process workflow using an online portal for CRASP 
partners to add new project areas with consistent attribution for subsequent querying and reporting capabilities.  

Project funding is provided by the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP) through the Section 319 
Program. Due to funding mechanisms, it is necessary to phase the project. Phase I, the currently funded portion 
of the project, includes base layer gathering and development, data centralization involving the development of 
a geodatabase, and publishing the data to ArcGIS Online, the new hosting service for CRASP data and subsequent 
web GIS components.  

Phases II and III are not currently funded; however, it is understood NCE will be expected to carry the project to 
completion. Phase II will involve acquiring the necessary licensing and then standing up an ESRI ArcGIS Online 
(AGOL) portal for CWSD and partner access to CRASP web GIS components. Phase III will focus on data input 
workflows, potentially using one of ESRI’s mobile applications (Field Maps, Survey123), quality control protocols, 
and web application development, including the ability to edit and query CRASP data and calculate summary 
statistics or metrics based on CRASP attribution and/or intersection with various background environmental 
layers. Depending on the web GIS components chosen, reporting (i.e., Carson River Watershed Project Summary 
Forms) can be developed as a function of the CRASP Web Application, or it can be an integrated aspect of 
Survey123 if that mobile application is chosen for this project.  

Project Approach 

NCE understands the critical constraints for this project: the CWSD currently has limited GIS capabilities, is not set 
up currently to host a web GIS solution, and there are budget constraints. Regardless, specific goals need to be 
accomplished. NCE’s approach, one focused on simplicity, will help achieve the project goals under the current 
constraints, using a framework that will become transferrable to the CWSD in the future.  



 CWSD Contractor Agreement #2022-6 

  DRAFT 
 

Page 7 of 13 

Contractor Agreement #2022-6   NCE – GIS Web Access System for CRASP  

NCE proposes to focus the development of a CRASP Web Application using ESRI’s AGOL framework using out-of-
the-box Web AppBuilder tools, hosted on NCE’s AGOL account, and implemented through ESRI’s AEC Project 
Delivery Subscription service. A Project Delivery Subscription is necessary because it allows external users (CWSD 
and its partners) to access their data hosted on NCE’s AGOL account. This arrangement is required to meet ESRI’s 
user and licensing agreements. Through the Project Delivery Subscription, a path is created to transfer the web 
application and its content seamlessly in the future, if desired. In addition, the workflow will also likely involve the 
deployment of one of ESRI’s mobile applications, Field Maps or Survey123, to ensure ease and consistency of 
CRASP project data entry and subsequent reporting needs.  

Licensing and content backup solutions are important considerations for this project. Since CWSD and partner 
access is necessary for testing, it is assumed initial licensing costs should be considered. The initial cost for a Project 
Delivery Subscription, additional user accounts, and content backup licensing (e.g., Geo Jobe) will be presented 
below under the Phase II General Approach. Licensing is maintained annually, so renewals (including additional 
credit) are not considered part of the project budget.  

Initial testing indicates functions desired by the CWSD are achievable with out-of-the-box WebApp Builder 
development tools, in concert with either the Field Maps or Survey123 mobile application. A goal of the project is 
to avoid customization, if possible, in order to maintain a hosting solution within the AGOL environment. However, 
should customization be necessary, NCE is teamed with DFC Orion, capable and experienced in web application 
and tool customization.  

NCE offers the following scope of work to accomplish the goals of Phase I, followed by general approaches to 
Phases II and III.  

Phase I Scope of Work: Geodatabase Development 

Based on the discussion from the project scoping meeting held on April 29, 2022, NCE understands the goals of 
Phase I, including gathering previous CRASP datasets from various sources, consolidating the data into a 
centralized geodatabase, then further designing the geodatabase to meet the needs of subsequent project 
phases. Initial data types will include a combination of geospatial data and tabular data. The following tasks outline 
the steps necessary to accomplish Phase I objectives. 

Task 1: Kick-Off Meeting, Data Acquisition & Coordination 
Shortly after the Notice to Proceed (NTP) is granted, an in-person kick-off meeting will be scheduled at 

the CWSD office with the appropriate CRASP partners to discuss the project. Meeting objectives include 

discussing the overall project approach (including the various web GIS components that can be leveraged 

to meet project objectives), the schedule, and data needs. Up to three hours is suggested for the meeting. 

A detailed agenda and meeting notes will be provided to all parties involved.  

One of the kick-off meeting outcomes will be a list of data requests required for subsequent tasks. At 

present, three data sources of past CRASP projects have been identified: Douglas County (point shapefile 

with limited attribution), CWSD-maintained CRASP tabular data, and NDEP-maintained CRASP tabular 

data. It is assumed all tabular data will contain XY coordinate information and will be provided to NCE 

in spreadsheet format for subsequent GIS conversion. In addition, the CWSD will provide several 

background environmental layers to NCE.  

During the kick-off meeting, if desired, NCE will present some example material to discuss web GIS 

development for the project and the various components under consideration. In particular, the mock 

CRASP Web Application (developed for NCE’s project proposal) will be showcased to demonstrate a few 

possible application capabilities. The Field Maps and Survey123 mobile applications will also be 

presented to explain the benefits and drawbacks of each. The objective of the live demonstration is to gain 

direction and agreement on the data collection workflow and the integrated web GIS development. 



 CWSD Contractor Agreement #2022-6 

  DRAFT 
 

Page 8 of 13 

Contractor Agreement #2022-6   NCE – GIS Web Access System for CRASP  

NCE understands participation in a November 2022 board meeting is necessary to explain and/or 

demonstrate the project’s next steps for Phases II and III. NCE will collaborate with CWSD staff regarding 

the materials to present at the meeting. 

Deliverables: 

• Kick-off meeting agenda and summary to all parties involved 

• CWSD Board Meeting materials 

Task 2: Geodatabase Development 
Once all data has been gathered, NCE will convert tabular data to GIS (point layers) and consolidate 

authoritative layers within a single ESRI File Geodatabase (GDB). It is assumed the resulting legacy 

CRASP project dataset will be point geometry, and background environmental layers may contain point, 

line, and polygon geometry types.  

Following GIS conversion and consolidation, NCE will work with the CWSD to design the new GDB. 

The first step will determine the minimum/mandatory attributes necessary for subsequent web application 

development and reporting needs. Based on a review of example Project Summary Forms and the scoping 

meeting, CRASP project attributes will include, but not be limited to: 

• Legacy ID (e.g., Map ID#; other unique identifiers) 

• Project ID (new ID – naming convention to be determined) 

• Project Name (e.g., “Cradlebaugh River Stabilization”) 

• Project Type (e.g., “River Rehabilitation”) 

• Project Objective (free form description) 

• Date started 

• Date Completed 

• County 

• HUC 

• Reach (new attribute) 

• Subreach (new attribute) 

• Latitude/Longitude 

• Location Details (free form description) 

• Project Contact Information 

• Area Restored/Stabilized 

• Estimated Load Reduction 

• Project Cost 

• Project Partners 

• Tracking 

o QAQC (e.g., project management review status by CWSD staff) 



 CWSD Contractor Agreement #2022-6 

  DRAFT 
 

Page 9 of 13 

Contractor Agreement #2022-6   NCE – GIS Web Access System for CRASP  

o Project Milestones (e.g., fieldwork completed, construction started, construction completed) 

 

In addition to the CRASP project layer, attribution of the background environmental layers will also need 

to be agreed upon by the CWSD.  

Another aspect of the GDB design to consider is tracking and quality control (QC). The current Project 

Summary Form calls out a section called “Tracking Updates and Milestones” that identifies such things 

as the date construction started and when it was completed. Other tracking updates may include when 

fieldwork was conducted and others to be determined with the CWSD. In addition, currently, there are no 

QC protocols established for the review of submitted project information. There are several ways to 

integrate tracking updates and data QC within the design of the GDB – as attributes in the CRASP project 

layer, as entries in a related table or a combination of both. Below are examples: 

• If project data is only anticipated to be reviewed once, attributes such as “QC Date” and “QC 

By” can be added directly to the CRASP project layer. This type of solution is a one-to-one 

relationship meaning there will be one project record and one review instance. All information 

would reside within the CRASP project layer.  

• Aspects of project tracking, on the other hand, are potentially handled more efficiently through a 

related table, making use of a one-to-many relationship with the CRASP project layer (one 

project entry associated with one or many project updates).  

NCE will work with the CWSD to determine the best method for integrating tracking and QC into the 

GDB design.  

Finally, a well-designed GDB will also consider domain controls (e.g., drop-down selections) to ensure 

data integrity and consistency. In other words, fields such as Project Type, County, HUC, Reach, and 

Subreach likely can be controlled through domains to limit the available values a user can select (e.g., 

County domain options are Carson City, Douglas, Washoe, Lyon, etc.).  

Based on previous experience collaborating with clients regarding the design of a GDB, NCE will develop 

a “metadata spreadsheet” outlining each layer and its attributes (the schema) and domains assigned. 

Aspects of tracking and QC will be included. Up to two rounds of comments are anticipated to finalize 

the metadata spreadsheet.  

Once the metadata spreadsheet has been finalized, all identified layers will be imported into the project 

GDB for an initial data integrity assessment. The point of the assessment is to identify issues or potential 

issues with the data, including spatial accuracy (XY locations incorrect) and missing/incorrect attribution. 

Given Phase I budget limitations, NCE will likely not be able to resolve all issues derived from the source 

data, such as incorrect locational information or missing attributes. To the extent feasible within the 

remaining budget, NCE will resolve as many issues as possible. NCE will provide a spreadsheet of layer 

attributes, calling attention to potentially incorrect and/or missing information. If the CWSD can provide 

an updated spreadsheet with corrections and missing information filled in, NCE can update the GIS. This 

exercise aims to make the CRASP dataset as complete and accurate as possible, with consideration of 

budget constraints, prior to publishing to AGOL. 

Deliverables: 

• Draft and final metadata spreadsheet 

• Data integrity assessment spreadsheet 



 CWSD Contractor Agreement #2022-6 

  DRAFT 
 

Page 10 of 13 

Contractor Agreement #2022-6   NCE – GIS Web Access System for CRASP  

Task 3: Data Publication & Workflow Testing 
Once an agreement has been reached regarding the design of the CRASP GDB, the content will be 

published to NCE’s AGOL account for web map development and data collection workflow testing. A 

web map needs to be configured prior to web application development. Configuration consists of setting 

editing permission on appropriate layers (CRASP project layer vs. environmental background layers), 

symbolizing layers (colors, transparencies) to optimize viewing, and configuring pop-ups to ensure 

attributes and attachments (such as photos) are conveyed effectively. 

Next, NCE will verify the data input workflow functions as expected using either Field Maps or Survey123 

(chosen during Task 1). Once the data collection workflow has been verified, NCE will schedule an in-

person meeting with CWSD staff to demonstrate the web map and the data collection workflow. If the 

CWSD identifies changes to the web map and/or data collection workflow, NCE will incorporate those 

changes to the extent feasible.  

Deliverables: 

• Draft and final web map and data collection workflow 

Phase II General Approach: Licensing & Portal Access 
Phases II and III are not yet funded. CWSD will seek additional grant funding from NDEP to complete these phases.  

Phase II involves the development of a portal for CWSD and CRASP partners to access the web and mobile 
applications, and associated software licensing. For CWSD and CRASP partners to access content hosted on NCE’s 
AGOL account, purchasing an ESRI Project Delivery Subscription (PDS) is necessary. The PDS comes with two 
Creator level licenses and 1,000 credits. One of the licenses is needed for NCE development, and the other will be 
for CWSD administrative access. Based on the discussion during the scoping meeting, up to two additional licenses 
are anticipated for CRASP partner access (Creator level recommended at this time). In addition to these licenses, 
NCE recommends the purchase of BackupMyOrg by Geo Jobe to back up content stored on AGOL.  

The table below identifies licensing costs. The initial purchase of these licenses will be factored into the Phase II 
budget; however, it is assumed the costs associated with ongoing hosting, license maintenance, and credit 
consumption will be part of a separate contract. Alternatively, the CWSD will have the option to take ownership 
of the AGOL content rather than contract with NCE. This can be accomplished by simply transferring the PDS to a 
future CWSD AGOL account.  

License Vendor Annual Cost 

Project Delivery Subscription 
*comes with 2 Creator licenses and 1,000 credits 

ESRI $1,200 

Creator (2) ESRI $1,000 

BackupMyOrg Geo Jobe $1,000 

Total  $3,200 

At this time, it is unknown how much credit will be consumed based on content storage and web application 
geoprocessing (e.g., processes that require additional server resources). It is assumed the credit provided as part 
of the PDS will be sufficient for this project. If additional credit is needed, a bundle of 1,000 credits may be 
purchased for $100 (not scoped).  

After licenses have been purchased and configured, NCE will provide a link to the web map developed during 
Phase I to the CWSD and CRASP partners to verify access and provide test input using Field Maps or Survey123. 
NCE will also configure BackupMyOrg and establish a scheduled and/or triggered protocol to ensure content is 
frequently and routinely backed up.  



 CWSD Contractor Agreement #2022-6 

  DRAFT 
 

Page 11 of 13 

Contractor Agreement #2022-6   NCE – GIS Web Access System for CRASP  

In order to preserve as much budget as possible for Phase III, a not to exceed amount of $10,000 is recommended 
for Phase II.  

Deliverables: 

• Purchase, installation, and configuration of ESRI and Geo Jobe licensing 

Phase III General Approach: Web Application Development & Training 

Phase III will focus on the desired functions of the CRASP Web Application and associated reporting needs. 
Functions and capabilities developed during this phase of the project will include: 

• the ability to add new records or edit existing records to the established CRASP project layer;  

• acquiring CRASP information derived from predefined queries (e.g., number of projects within Douglas 
County; number of Bank Stabilization projects within a certain reach; total acres of river 
restoration/stabilization within the Carson River hydrographic basin, etc.); 

• exporting Carson River Watershed Project Summary Forms based on CRASP layer attributes (established 
during Phase I) – this may be accomplished using the CRASP Web Application or the powerful and 
flexible Survey123 reporting tool. 

Much collaboration and testing are anticipated during this phase. Up to two in-person meetings are suggested to 
demonstrate draft and final web application capabilities and data collection workflows to CWSD and CRASP 
partners. At this time, it is suggested to limit editing capabilities within the web application to CWSD staff only. 
CRASP partners will be able to access and use the functions of the web application and the Survey123 reporting 
tool (if chosen) but cannot edit CRASP data. Partners will be able to add new CRASP project data using either Field 
Maps or Survey123. Using this approach, CWSD staff will have more control over the data, an important aspect of 
QC review.  

The suggested QC review process involves simple record flagging, where upon a new project record entry, the QC 
status is defaulted to “Open.” Periodically (schedule yet to be determined), CWSD staff would check for “Open” 
records, review values inputted by CRASP partners, and then update the QC Status to “Closed.” A visual 
infographic can be included in the Web Application to display the number of “Open” records.  

With regard to training, once the CRASP Web Application and partner workflow have been agreed upon and 
established, NCE will include an “About” widget within the web application to inform users how to use the various 
functions. Application and workflow overview will also be provided during the final in-person meeting mentioned 
previously. If remaining budget exists, NCE can develop brief hard-copy training materials. 

Deliverables: 

• Draft and final CRASP Web Application and workflow 

• Hardcopy training materials (if budget remains) 

 

Assumptions 

• The in-person project kick-off meeting will be up to three hours in length 

• Tabular data provided to NCE will contain XY coordinate information and be provided in 

spreadsheet format for subsequent GIS conversion 

o Once incorporated into the GDB, these legacy CRASP projects will be point type 

geometry, not requiring additional manipulation (e.g., conversion to polygon) 



 CWSD Contractor Agreement #2022-6 

  DRAFT 
 

Page 12 of 13 

Contractor Agreement #2022-6   NCE – GIS Web Access System for CRASP  

• Projection issues associated with environmental base layers provided will be able to be resolved 

with minimal effort (less than four hours). If projection issues cannot be resolve in a timely 

manner, the CWSD will be contacted for resolution.  

• Geoprocessing of CRASP data and environmental base layers will be limited in scope and scale 

– up to 8 hours is allotted for geoprocessing. The CWSD will be contacted if issues arise with 

this assumption.  

• If attachments are to be included with the legacy data, the CWSD will provide an attachment 

table that associated photo filenames with a CRASP project ID 

• NCE will likely not be able to resolve all issues derived from the source data, such as incorrect 

locational information or missing attributes 

• When material is provided for comment, review timeframes are anticipated to be approximately 

two weeks or less 

• Two rounds of comments will be needed to finalize the metadata spreadsheet 

• Initial licensing costs are considered part of the project; however, renewals (annual maintenance) are 
outside this scope of work 

o NCE will host web GIS content for the CWSD for the project’s duration. Upon completion of the 
project, the CWSD will have the option to take ownership of project content, which will involve 
purchasing and creating a CWSD AGOL account, or NCE will continue to host the content on an 
annual basis under a separate contract. 

o Credit provided as part of the PDS will be sufficient for this project (no additional credit 
purchase is needed) 

• Phases II and III will be contracted through amendments to a master contract and detailed scopes of 
work will be provided upon request 

 

 

Cost Estimate 
The total cost for funding the project is approximately $55,000; however, only Phase I is funded at this 

time. The CWSD will seek the additional $40,000 in funding from NDEP, in future funding cycles 

 

Project Phase Cost 

Estimate 

Phase I: Geodatabase Development $15,000 

Phase II: Licensing & Portal Access $10,000 

Phase III: Web Application Development & 
Training 

$30,000 

Total $55,000 

 
  



 CWSD Contractor Agreement #2022-6 

  DRAFT 
 

Page 13 of 13 

Contractor Agreement #2022-6   NCE – GIS Web Access System for CRASP  

 

Schedule 
Based on input from the CWSD and the tasks identified above, NCE offers the following schedule: 

• Contract approval – Board Meeting - May 18, 2022 

• Send CWSD Board approved contract to NCE – May 20, 2022 

• Task 1 

o Kick-off meeting – May-June 2022 

o Data to NCE –June-July 2022 

• Task 2 

o Geodatabase development (metadata spreadsheet, data integrity assessment) – June-

August 2022 

• Task 3 

o Publish final GDB to AGOL and develop web map – September 2022 

o Test workflow with CRC Partners (web map and possibly Survey123 only at this stage) – 

September-October 2022 

• Phase II: Licensing & Portal Access 

o Once funding becomes available, NCE will purchase and configure the necessary 

licensing and verify CWSD and CRASP partner access – early 2023 

• Phase III: Web Application Development & Training 

o If Phase II and III funding can be lumped together, Phase III development can occur 

immediately following Phase II and be completed by the end of 2023 

o If funding for Phase III will not be released until 2024, development can be completed 

within an estimated six-month timeframe after the release of funds (mid-2024) 

 



AGENDA ITEM #13



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: May 18, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item #13– For Possible Action:  Update on the Watershed Literacy 
Campaign and present May Watershed Moment “Explore the Watershed” 
video 

 

 
DISCUSSION:  Staff will give an update on the Watershed Literacy Campaign and show 
the Explore Your Watershed - Watershed Moment video.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM #14 



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: May 18, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item #14 – For Possible Action:  Review Strategic Planning Session 
Survey Results 

 

 

DISCUSSION:  Attached is the survey results.  Staff will briefly review the results with the 
Board members to obtain any additional comments.  For items that need more direction, 
staff will set up various committee meetings to develop policies.   

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Provide direction.  
 
 



2022 Strategic Planning Session Survey Results 

 

Below are the results of the Carson Water Subconservancy District’s Board Survey, translated into 

graphs for ease of viewing. The Survey consisted of 23 questions with three choices of “High”, 

“Medium”, and “Low”, meant to function as a guide for prioritizing CWSD’s future projects and a 

jumping off point for discussion.  

After each graph will be a brief explanation of results, along with any accompanying comments 

provided by the respondents to the Survey- each question gave an opportunity for the respondent to 

provide additional input.  

All the current 14 Board members responded to our Survey. 

 

Water Supply 

 
Of the 14 respondents, 85.7% (12 respondents) rated continuing to develop a 30-year regional water 

resource plan for the entire Carson River Watershed as a High priority. Only two respondents (14.3%) 

viewed it as a Medium priority. 

Additional Comments: 

“I think this falls under our core mission.” 

“In light of the changing climate, I believe it's critical to continue to update the 30-year plan.” 

“This should be done in conjunction with the various counties.” 

“Counties that work together stay together.” 



 

With Question 2, a slim majority of 42.9% (6 respondents) selected the High option regarding re-

establishing the list of water supply and facilities eligible for CWSD funding out of the 

Acquisition/Construction Fund. Medium was the second-most popular section at 42.9% (6 respondents). 

Of 13 respondents, only two (14.3%) viewed it as a Low priority.  

Additional Comments: 

“I'm concerned that a set list might discourage applicants. Perhaps general categories would work fine. 

I think it might be helpful to list examples of things that would have a hard time qualifying.” 

 

On the continuing yearly transfer of $75,000 from the General Account to the Acquisition/Construction 

Account, a majority prioritized this as High (50%, 7 respondents). 42.9% (6 respondents) selected 

Medium in response to this question, and only 7.1% (1 respondent) selected Low. 

 

Additional Comments: 

“This should be driven by Acquisition/Construction plan and requirements.” 

 

  



Water Quality 

 

Of continuing to pursue NDEP CWA Section 319(h) funding for the CRC/Watershed Coordination 

Program, a clear majority of respondents (57.1%, 8 respondents) viewed this as a High priority. 42.9% 

(6 respondents) selected medium in response to this question. No respondents selected Low. 

 

There were no additional comments to this question. 

 

Pursuing other funding sources to continue the CRC/Watershed Coordination Program was viewed as a 

High priority by 7 respondents (50%). 5 respondents (35.7%) selected Medium, and 2 respondents 

(14.3%) selected Low. 

Additional Comments: 

“So long as it doesn’t violate the Alpine decree.” 

“we must not enter into any agreement that would cause legal action of Alpine Decree.” 

 

  



Floodplain Management 

 

Of developing an annual amount to be transferred from the General Account into the Floodplain 

Management Account, a majority at 8 respondents (57.1%) viewed this as a Medium priority item. 6 

respondents (42.9%) selected High. No respondents selected the Low option. 

Additional Comments: 

“Does the Floodplain Management Account need more funding/funding help?” 

 

7 respondents (50%) viewed the pursuit of funding to implement regional flood projects throughout the 

watershed as a High priority item. 6 respondents (42.9%) viewed this as a Medium priority. Only 1 

respondent (7.1%) selected Low. 

Additional Comments: 

“I believe we should be focusing on drought problems not flood problems at this time.” 

“This has direct effect and benefit to our client counties.” 



 
On the topic of participating with Counties in their Hazards Mitigation Plan (HMP) updates, an even 

number of respondents viewed the topic as both a High and Medium priority (6 respondents each, 

42.9%). 2 respondents (14.3%) selected Low. 

Additional Comments: 

“Direct water quality impact.” 

“This should be a coordinated effort.” 

“NV Dept of Environmental Protection should take lead.” 

 

Invasive Species Management 

 

On hosting a CRC Weed Summit, there was an uneven split of 6 respondents (42.9%) selecting 

Medium, 5 respondents (35.7%) selecting High, and 3 respondents (21.4%) selecting Low. 

 

Additional Comments: 

“I'm not sure about this one and would support a higher mark if staff ranks higher.” 

“I think this is a great idea, especially as it applies to invasive plants and abatement measures.” 

“Many ranchers have trouble with what they call noxious weeds, this should be part of this project.” 



 

A clear majority of 8 respondents (57.1%) viewed continuing coordination with Cooperative Weed 

Management Areas to support weed management as a High priority. 4 respondents (28.6%) viewed it as 

a Medium item, and only 2 respondents (14.3%) selected Low. 

Additional Comments: 

“While this is a direct benefit it should be done as there is coordination and implementation priorities 

by the client counties.” 

 

On the topic of working with our CRC partners to develop a volunteer weed 

removal/reseeding/replanting program, 9 respondents (64.3%) selected the Medium choice. 3 

respondents (21.4%) viewed the development of a weed removal/reseeding/replanting program as a 

High priority, and 2 respondents (14.3%) thought of it as Low priority. 

Additional Comments: 

“Volunteer programs are a wonderful way to increase community understanding and support for/about 

important programs.” 

“This should be secondary to bank stabilization.” 

 

  



River Restoration & Bank Stabilization 

 

Of completing a river rehabilitation structure inventory and mapping database, a clear majority of 85.7% 

(12 respondents) selected this as a High priority. 14.3% (2 respondents) viewed this as a Medium 

priority. No respondents thought of this item as Low priority. 

Additional Comments: 

“Very important.” 

 

11 respondents (78.6%) viewed the completion of projects outlined in CRASP and RFMP as a High 

priority, and 3 respondents (21.4%) saw it as a Medium priority. No respondents selected Low. 

Additional Comments: 

“How is this project shaping up? Is it working as planned?” 



 

The pursuit of funding for the Geomorphology and Sediment Transport Plan to identify and prioritize 

project implementation in the Carson River was selected as a Medium priority by half of the respondents 

(7 respondents, 50%). 5 respondents (35.7%) selected High, while only 2 respondents (14.3%) selected 

Low in response to this item. 

Additional Comments: 

“This would be of benefit to the client counties as well as the CWSD strategic plan.” 

 

Outreach & Education 

 

Half of all respondents (50%) selected High regarding the continuation to promote the “I Am Carson 

River Watershed” campaign. 6 respondents (42.9%) selected Medium, and only 1 respondent responded 

Low. 

Additional Comments: 

“While nice PR these are not fundamental to the mission and they require considerable time and 

production. As resources and grants simultaneously allow for pursuit.” 

 



 

Nearly the entirety of Survey respondents (13, 92.9%) selected Medium in response to the item of re-

surveying watershed residents regarding watershed literacy. Only 1 respondent selected High. No 

respondents selected Low. 

There were no additional comments to this question. 

 

On the topic of updating and reformatting the CWSD website, 9 respondents (64.3%) selected this as of 

Medium importance. 3 respondents (21.4%) selected High, and 2 respondents (14.3%) selected Low. 

Additional Comments: 

“Should be done only after an analysis of page visits and info needs/requests. Need to know the 

objectives and priorities for info on the website as required clients & constituents.” 

“Some video presentations.” 

 



 

6 respondents (42.9%) selected Medium regarding the idea of creating bi-weekly watershed articles for 

local newspapers, 5 respondents (35.7%) selected High, and 3 respondents (21.4%) selected Low. 

Additional Comments: 

“The issue here is the balance between advocacy and activism. Advocacy must be within the core 

mission of watershed planning & management. I fear "mission creep" into activism.” 

“We need to keep CWSD in the public eye, and this is a relatively easy thing for staff to do.” 

“Perhaps look at monthly, more realistic.” 

“Not enough distribution.” 

 

Recreation 

 

On the promotion of the expansion of the Carson River Aquatic Trail, a majority of respondents (8, 

57.1%) selected Low. 4 respondents (28.6%) selected Medium, and 2 respondents (14.3%) selected 

High. 

Additional Comments: 

“I would like more information on this before I vote a high priority to promote expansion.” 

“This is the responsibility of other organizations. Involvement should be limited to that which is direct 

support of the core mission.” 



“People want to protect what they know and use. Volunteer labor from local trail organizations can 

help with this, and the more people who walk on the trails and see the area, the more people will care 

about it. Also, consider ADA so everyone can use it.” 

“Trails should be very low on our list of important to-dos.” 

 

 

A majority at 57.1% (8 respondents) selected High regarding working with recreational partners to 

promote watershed health, 28.6% (4 respondents) selected Medium, and 14.3% (2 respondents) selected 

Low. 

Additional Comments: 

“This should involve ranchers as well.” 

 

Other Inquiries 

 

On presenting the Guiding Principles, Stewardship Plan, and the Regional Floodplain Management Plan 

to all the County’s boards and Planning Commissions, a 71.4% majority (10 respondents) selected High, 

while 28.6% (4 respondents) selected Medium. No respondents selected Low. 

Additional Comments: 

“Maybe more important to present to county staff, rather than electeds.” 



“If this happens, make sure to provide them with a list of achievements and identified issues along the 

river.” 

“This is something we should do on an ongoing basis to justify County funding to the District.” 

“Once a presentation is created, it can be used for all the boards. This will keep the CWSD in public eye 

and will make it easier to communicate with local leaders in the future.” 

“I would include legislative members as well.” 

 

 

There was an even split between those who saw the pursuit of legislation to amend CWSD’s Chapter 

621 authorization to include doing business and changing CWSD’s name as a Medium or Low selection 

(6 respondents, 42.9%). Only 2 respondents (14.3%) selected High. 

 

Additional Comments: 

“Contingent on the expressed need for better understanding of our mission and activity by our client 

Counties.” 

“Important, Name image is important to express what we are about.” 

 

 



Regarding the potential purchase of some of Bently’s water rights, 64.3% (9 respondents) selected High. 

21.4% (3 respondents) selected Medium, and 14.3% (2 respondents) selected Low. 

Additional Comments: 

“Water is gold, we need to buy everything we can.” 

“As long as it does not ‘crowd out’ private entities that could demonstrate ‘higher productive 

management and use’ of the water.” 

“Water rights are only going to become more rare and expensive. Get them while we can!” 

 

 



AGENDA ITEM #15 



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: EDWIN D. JAMES  
 
DATE: May 18, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item #15 – For Possible Action: Approval of the General Fund, 
Acquisition/Construction Fund, and Floodplain Management Fund  
FY 2022-23 Final Budgets  

 
DISCUSSION: Attached are the proposed final FY 22-23 budgets for the General Fund, 
Acquisition/Construction Fund, and Floodplain Management Fund.  There are a few 
changes from the Tentative Budgets to the Final Budgets.  Some of the grant expenditures 
and income have changed.  The projected income from the counties was higher than 
shown in the Tentative Budget.  All the non-grant changes are shown in red.  The original 
number in the Tentative Budget is shown in the Notes column.  The proposed changes 
are: 

• Employee Benefits are increased by $7,380 to cover the increase in Health 
Insurance 

• Workers Comp Ins is reduced by $200 

• Telephone costs are reduced by $6,500.  Switching the phone system over to 
Vonage will reduce the costs significantly while expanding the phone system.   

• Office Equipment for both this fiscal year and next fiscal year are increased to cover 
the new office equipment necessary when we move into our new office. The 
estimated increase cost for this fiscal year is $7,000 and the estimated increase 
cost for next fiscal year is $3,000. 

• FEMA MAS 11 Match is a new account to show the expense of the web access 
hosting. The cost is $7,200.  The funding is coming from the Floodplain 
Management Fund.   

• Expenses for the USGS Water Resources Study 2022-2024 was added to the 
current fiscal year.  The cost is $20,805. These funds are coming from the 
Acquisition/Construction Fund. 

• Under Other Income, the transfers from the Floodplain Management and the 
Acquisition/Construction Funds are shown for the costs associated with the Web 
Access Hosting and the USGS Water Resources Study 2022-24.  

 
With these proposed changes and increase in property taxes, CWSD has an additional 
$70,000.  Based on the discussion at the strategic planning meeting, staff is proposing 
that the transfers to the Acquisition/Construction and Floodplain Management Funds be 
increased by $35,000.   

To simplify the accounting process, instead of showing the expenses in the Floodplain 
Management Fund and Acquisition/Construction Fund, going forward the expenses will 



5/18/22 CWSD Board Meeting 
Agenda Item #15 – Approval Final Budget FY 22/23 

 

 

2 

be shown only in the General Fund.  Money coming in and out of the Floodplain 
Management Fund and Acquisition/Construction Fund will be recorded as transfers.  
Staff ran this idea by CWSD’s auditor and the Department of Taxation and both entities 
have no concern with this accounting process.  The numbers effected by this  change 
are shown in green. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approved the budgets as submitted.  









 

Programs
11%

Projects
30%

Admin
24%

Admin-Grant
8%

Studies
2%

Study-Grant
23%

Prog-Grant
2%

FY 2022-23
Final General Budget 







STAFF REPORTS 



 

 

CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

 
TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
FROM:  EDWIN D. JAMES  
 
DATE:  May 18, 2022 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item #16 - For Information Only:  Staff Report  

 
DISCUSSION: The following is a list of meetings/activities (mostly virtual) attended by  
Ed James and staff since the last Board meeting on April 20, 2022: 
 
4/21/22 – Brenda & Martina met w/NEON re: Watershed Moments Campaign  

4/21/22 – Ed attended meeting re: Carson Valley Floodplain Maps 

4/22/22 – Ed gave presentation during Floodplain Management Association Emerging 
Professionals Webinar 

4/26/22 – Brenda met w/Birgit Widegren, Nevada Division of Environmental Protection 
(NDEP) to discuss Sub-Watershed HUCI2 for the National Water Quality Initiative (NWQI) 

4/27/22 – Debbie attended meeting re: Clear Creek project 

4/27/22 – Debbie, Brenda & Shane organized & hosted Carson River Coalition Floodplain 
Management Working group meeting 

4/28/22 – Debbie attended Nevada Flood Awareness Week (FAW) meeting 

4/28/22 – Debbie attended Recipient Webinar re: Department of Homeland Security (DHS) 
Civil Rights Evaluation Tool 

4/28/22 – Brenda attended virtual tour of Leviathan Mine Superfund site 

4/28/22 – Brenda & Shane met w/ Truckee Meadows Parks Foundation about extending 
AmeriCorps 

4/28/22 – Debbie attended FY22 FEMA Award Process meeting 

4/29/22 – Brenda & Shane attended Web Viewer Scoping meeting 

5/3/22 – Shane & Martina filmed Soils Demonstration with NDEP 

5/4/22 – Brenda, Shane, & Martina attended Internal Data Review meeting 

5/4/22 – Staff meeting (all) 

5/5/22 - Martina attended Social Media Onboarding meeting w/ NEON 

5/5/22 – Brenda & Shane met with Rebecca of River Wranglers re: AmeriCorps & 
upcoming RW projects 

5/7/22 – Shane & Martina showed Watershed Moments videos at Washoe Tribe Earth Day 
Celebration 

5/7/22 – Debbie demonstrated Watershed Model at Fallon Paiute Shoshone Tribe Earth 



2 
5/18/2022 CWSD Board Meeting 
Agenda Item #16 - Staff Report 

Day Celebration 

5/9/22 – Ed & Debbie met w/Carson City Staff & Michael Baker reps re: East Carson City 
project map 

5/9/22 – Debbie met w/Robb Fellows re:  High-Water Mark project in Carson City 

5/9/22 – Debbie met w/Courtney Walker re:  High-Water mark project in Douglas County 

5/10/22 – Debbie attended High Water Mark Communications Outreach meeting 

5/10/22 – Ed & Debbie met w/representatives from San Diego to discuss the CTP program 

5/10/22 – Ed met with Tracy Roth re: ongoing and upcoming groundwater efforts 

5/11/22 – “Explore your Watershed” Launch 

5/11/22 – Ed attended Nevada Flood Mitigation Workshop 

5/12/22 – Brenda & Martina attended NWQI/CRASP Discussion with Birgit Widegren 

5/15-19/22 – Debbie is attending and is a featured speaker on CWSD’s FEMA processes 
at the Association of State Floodplain Managers (ASFPM) Conference in Orlando, Florida 

5/13/22 – Ed attended meeting in Churchill County re: regional water plan 

5/17/22 – Ed attended the Nevada Water Resources Association (NWRA) Board of 
Trustees meeting 

5/19/22 – Brenda, Shane & Martina had creative meeting w/NEON on balance of 
Watershed Moments campaign 

Upcoming Meeting/Activities: 

5/23/22 – Ed gave a presentation to the Legislative Subcommittee on Public Lands 

5/25/22 – CRC Education Working Group Meeting 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. 



NO CORRESPONDENCE


	5-18-22 #1 Agenda
	#6 insert (last minutes)
	5-18-22 #6 4-20-2022 Bd Mtg Minutes (DRAFT)
	#7 insert (TreasRpt)
	5-18-22 #7 Treasurers Report
	#8 insert (Pmt of Bills)
	5-18-22 #8 BILLS PAID
	#9 insert
	5-18-22 #9 River Wranglers
	5-18-22 #9A River Wranglers Agreement #2022-5 FAW
	#10 insert
	Page 1

	5-18-22 #10 CARDNO ADDENDUM
	5-18-22 #10A Cardno Memo
	5-18-22 #10B  Addendum to Agreement #2021-23 CARDNO-Clear Creek
	#11 insert
	Page 1

	5-18-22 #11 PUBLIC BUDGET HEARING
	For Possible Action: Approval of NCE Agreement #2022-6 in a total amount of$15,000 with the possibility of future expenses in a total additional amount of$40,000
	#12 insert
	Page 1

	5-18-22 #12 APPROVAL OF NCE AGREEMENT
	5-18-22 #12A  NCE AGREEMENT
	#13 insert
	Page 1

	5-18-22 #13 Watershed Literacy Campaign
	#14 insert
	5-18-22 #14 Strategic Session Survey Results
	5-18-22 #14A Strategic Session Survey Results
	#15 insert
	5-18-22 #15 FINAL FY 22-23 Budget Approval
	5-18-22 #15A General Fund
	5-18-22 #15B General Pie Chart
	5-18-22 #15C Proposed Final FY 2022-23 Floodplain Budget
	5-18-22 #15D Proposed Final FY 2022-23 Acqu-Cons Budget
	Staff reports
	5-18-22 #16 STAFF REPORT
	No Correspondence insert
	Page 1


